



Minutes

Ordinary Council Meeting

Held in Council Chambers, Wolfram Street Westonia Thursday 24th July 2025

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES These minutes were confirmed by the Council on 21st August 2025 as a true and accurate record of the Ordinary Council Meeting held 24th July 2025. Cr RM Crees Shire President

All attachment items referred to in these minutes are available for public perusal at the Shire Office

Disclaimer

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Westonia for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council meetings.

The Shire of Westonia disclaims and liability for any loss whatsoever and howsoever caused by arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during the Council Meetings.

Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement, act or omission made in a Council or committee meeting does that persons or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the board disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for a license, any statement or intimation made by any member or Officer of the Shire of Westonia during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Westonia.

The Shire of Westonia warns that anyone who has any application lodged with the Shire of Westonia must obtain and should only rely on **WRITTEN CONFIRMATION** of the outcome of the application, and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Westonia in respect of the application.

STRATEGIC COMMUNITY

- 1. Relationships that bring us tangible benefits (to the Shire and our community)
- 2. Our lifestyle and strong sense of community.
- We are prepared for opportunities and we are innovative to ensure our relevancy and destiny.

OUR VALUES

<u>Respect</u> – We value people and places and the contribution they make to the Shire.

<u>Inclusiveness</u> – Be receptive, proactive, and responsive.

<u>Fairness and Equity</u> – Provide services for a variety of ages and needs.

<u>Communication</u> – Create opportunities for consultation with the broad community.

SNAPSHOT PLAN 2018-2028

OUR VISION

A vibrant community lifestyle

MISSION

Provide leadership and direction for the community.

ECONOMIC



Support growth and progress, locally and regionally...

Efficient transport connectivity in and around our Shire.

- Continue to utilise our Road Management Plan, which incorporates a road hierarchy, minimum service levels and maintenance policy.
- RAV Ratings and Shire boundaries are consistent across local government boundaries
- Lobby and build enduring partnerships with key Government Departments to improve Great Eastern Hwy.
- Actively participate in the Secondary Freight Network group.
- Develop and implement a Road Asset Plan highlighting key funder and strategic partnerships to support sustainability.
- Develop a Gravel Reserve Policy which identifies future gravel reserves and recognises cost to local government.
- Educate road users about road safety and driving on gravel roads.
- Optimal and safe use of our plants and equipment assets.
- Ensure that appropriate RAV vehicles traverse correct RAV routes.
- Maintain our airport with a view to improvements to meet commercial and recreational aviation needs.

Facilitate local business retention and growth.

- Council recognises the opportunity of partnering with Westonia Progress Association, works closely and supports them to help achieve their economic development projects and our strategic goals.
- Council continue to have a role in facilitating the presence of a Co-op in our community.
- Enhance local economic activity by supporting the growth of tourism in our Shire and region including applying for funding to improve tourist facilities.
- Improve our online tourism presence.
- We forward plan to improve the economic diversity in our community.
- In partnership with Council, the mine develops long term business plans for current mine assets.
- Investigate options for multipurpose accommodation if vacancies arise in mine accommodation.

SOCIAL



Provide community facilities and promote social Interaction...

Plan for community growth and changing demographics.

- Develop the Town Planning Scheme.
- Plan and develop residential and industrial land.
- Community safety and ease of access around town is a priority.
- Our lifestyle, facilities and sense of community is promoted.
- The CEACA project continues to expand the number of universally designed dwellings in our town.
- We support our emergency services.
- We enable visiting health professionals to our community.
- The Community Resource Centre receives external funding to provide preventative health and community development initiatives to the community.
- We facilitate healthy and active ageing in place
- Our cemetery is well presented.

Our community has the opportunity to be active, socialised and connected.

- We collaborate and encourage active engagement in local clubs and community initiatives that support a healthy lifestyle.
- Investigate motor sport opportunities around the Shire.
- Preserve and celebrate our local history.
- Support our volunteers and clubs to remain strong, dynamic, and inclusive.
- Encourage lifelong learning.
- Children and youth have active and social opportunities.
- Continue to provide high standard and accessible shire facilities.
- Retain and expand Westonia's unique tourism experience.

Natural spaces are preserved and bring us value.

- Sustainably manage our reserves and open spaces.
- Participate in best practice waste management.
 Work collaboratively to meet legislative compliance with managing weeds and pests as well as our
- environmental health standards.
 Investigate renewable energy generation technologies.

GOVERNANCE



Shire's organisational capacity to service the needs of a growing community...

Be progressive and capture opportunities.

- Be open to local productivity/ best practice and cost saving opportunities locally and regionally.
- Investigate joint resourcing and tendering
- Advocate and develop strong partnerships to benefit our community.
- Be prepared by forward planning our resources and focusing on continuous improvement.
- Identify risks and opportunities after the life of the mine.

The community receives services in a timely manner.

- Meet our legislative and compliance requirements.
- Work towards optimal management of our assets.
- Work to develop Councillor and staff skills and experience to provide career and succession opportunities within the Shire.
- Inside and outside staff are multi skilled to understand the business of local government and provide a seamless service to the community.
- Communicate and engage with our community regularly.

Financial resources meet the ongoing needs of the community.

- Seek external funding for significant capital improvements that deliver upon our strategic objectives.
- Investigate ways to reduce reliance on operational grants given the current State and Federal Government priorities.

Shire of Westonia: -

A vibrant community lifestyle.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DECLARATION OF OPENING	5
2.	ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE	5
3.	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (4.10PM – 4.25PM)	5
4.	APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	5
5.	CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES	5
6.	RECEIVAL OF MINUTES	6
7.	PRESIDENT/COUNCILLORS ANNOUNCEMENTS	6
8.	DECLARATION OF INTEREST	7
9.	MATTERS REQUIRING A COUNCIL DECISION	8
9.1	I. GOVERNANCE, ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCIAL SERVICES	8
9.1.	1 ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT – JUNE 2025	8
9.1.	2 MONTHLY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY— JUNE 2025	10
9.1.	3 GST RECONCILIATION REPORT – JUNE 2025	12
9.1.	4 ADOPTION OF THE 2025/2026 BUDGET	14
9.1.	5 WALGA AGM AND CONVENTION 2025	21
9.2	2 COMMUNITY AND REGULATIONS	23
9.2.	1 RURAL HEALTH FUNDING ALLIANCE SUPPORT	23
9.2.	2 WHEATBELT NRM – COLLECTION OF SEED AUTHORITY	25
9.2.	3 BRENDA NEWBEY – COLLECTION OF SEED AUTHORITY	27
9.3	B WORKS AND SERVICES	29
9.4	ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH, PLANNING AND BUILDING SERVICES	30
10.	ELECTED MEMBERS MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	31
	NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY A DECISION OF THE MEETING	31
11.1	REGIONAL ROAD GROUP – 5 YEAR PROGRAM & 26/27 PROJECT MCA'S	31
12	DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING	32
13.	MEETING CLOSURE	32

1. DECLARATION OF OPENING

The President, Cr Crees welcomed Councillors and staff and declared the meeting open at 4.00pm.

A minute's silence was held as a mark of respect for the following person who have recently passed away: Mr Rob Simmonds

2. ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Councillors:

Cr RM Crees Shire President
Cr RA Della Bosca Deputy Shire President

Cr DL Geier Cr WJ Huxtable Cr A Faithfull Cr DL Simmonds

Staff:

Mr.AW Price Chief Executive Officer
Mrs JL Geier Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Members of the Public:

Apologies:

Approved Leave of Absence:

3. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (4.10PM - 4.25PM)

NIL

4. APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Ainslie Faithfull

5. CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 19th June 2025 be confirmed as a true and correct record.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Simmonds Seconded: Cr Faithfull

01/07-25 That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 19th June 2025 be confirmed as

a true and correct record

6. RECEIVAL OF MINUTES

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That the minutes of the Wheatbelt North-East Sub Regional Road Group Meeting held on Friday 2nd June 2025 be accepted.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Geier Seconded: Cr Huxtable

02/07-25 That the minutes of the Wheatbelt North-East Sub Regional Road Group Meeting held on

Friday 2nd June 2025 be accepted.

CARRIED 6/0

7. PRESIDENT/COUNCILLORS ANNOUNCEMENTS

President, Cr Crees advised having attended the following meetings:

Road Inspection Wednesday 25th June 2025

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

WEROC executive Meeting 19th June

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

Deputy President, Cr Della Bosca advised having attended the following meetings:

Road Inspection Wednesday 25th June 2025

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

Councillor Geier advised having attended the following meetings:

Road Inspection Wednesday 25th June 2025

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

Wheatbelt North East SRRG Zoom Meeting this coming Friday 27th Jue 2025

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

Councillor Simmonds advised having attended the following meetings:

Road Inspection Wednesday 25th June 2025

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

Councillor Faithfull advised having attended the following meetings:

Road Inspection Wednesday 25th June 2025

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

Councillor Huxtable advised having attended the following meetings:

Drafted Budget Meeting Wednesday 2nd July 2025

WALGA Local Government Awards 2025 Saturday 19th July 2025

8. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

In accordance with Section 5.65 of the *Local Government Act 1995* the following disclosures of <u>Financial</u> interest were made at the Council meeting held on **24**th **July 2025.**

Name/Position	
Item No./Subject	
Nature of interest	
Extent of Interest	

In accordance with Section 5.65 of the *Local Government Act 1995* the following disclosures of <u>Closely Association Person and Impartiality</u> interest were made at the Council meeting held on **24**th **July 2025.**

Name/Position	
Item No./Subject	
Nature of interest	
Extent of Interest	

In accordance with Section 5.60B and 5.65 of the *Local Government Act 1995* the following disclosures of **Proximity.** interest were made at the Council meeting held on **24**th **July 2025**.

Name/Position	
Item No./Subject	
Nature of interest	
Extent of Interest	

9. MATTERS REQUIRING A COUNCIL DECISION

9.1. GOVERNANCE, ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1.1 ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT – JUNE 2025

Responsible Officer: Bill Price, CEO

Author: Jasmine Geier, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

File Reference: F1.3.3 Monthly Financial Statements

Disclosure of Interest: Nil

Attachments: Attachment 9.1.1 List of Accounts

Signature: Officer CEO

Purpose of the Report

Accounts for payment are presented to Council in the interests of accountability and provide information on Council expenditure.



Background

This information is provided to Council on a monthly basis in accordance with provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996. A Local Government is to develop procedures for the authorisation of, and payment of, accounts to ensure that there is effective security for, which money or other benefits July be obtained.



Comment

Attached is a copy of Accounts for Payment for the month of June 2025 The credit card/ Fuel Card statements currently show: -

MasterCard Transactions

Office 365 Exchange online Plan Monthly Recurring, 1047021 Microsoft 365 Business Basic Recurring Monthly, Active8me internet service, 1049449 Managed Endpoint & Subscriptions Recurring, 1038283 - Microsoft 365 Business Std Recurring, Starlink - CEO Internet Reddy Express – Fuel, Westonia Shire - Change of Plates, FTC Northam - Fuel Canter, Dept Energy, Mines, Industry - Annual Licence Dangerous Goods, National Character Check, United Kellerberrin – Fuel, Big W - Canvas Prints, Card Fee

DCEO June 2025 \$5,000.00 associated with the purchase of, Dept Racing & Gaming - Occaisonal Liquor Licence, WALGA LG Awards, Kmart - Microwaves Toasters, Survey Monkey Subscription, MyDeal - Safe Key Drop Box, Seton - Trolley Bundle, My Henry - Vacuum Cleaners, Go Mad - Storage Containers ,Geraghtys Engineering - Bus Annual Inspection, Red Herring Games - Games, International Transaction, Card Fee

Fuel Card Transactions Totalling Nil

CEO Nil

DCEO Nil

Construction Supervisor Nil



Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 Regulations 12 & 13 requires the list of accounts to be presented to Council. Payments are made by staff under delegated authority from the CEO and Council.



Policy Implications

Council does not have a policy in relation to payment of accounts.



Strategic Implications

Accounts for payment are presented to Council in the interests of accountability and provide information on Council expenditure.



Financial Implications

Expenditure in accordance with the 2024/2025 Annual Budget.



Voting Requirements

X

Simple Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That June 2025 accounts submitted to today's meeting on Municipal D/Debits from DD4586 to DD4634 and Electronic Fund Transfers EFT7675 to EFT7718 (Inclusive of Department for Planning and Infrastructure / Creditor and Bank Fees Directly Debited and Credit Card Payments) totalling \$1,021,454.38 be passed for payment.

RESOLUTION

Moved:

CrGeier

Seconded:

CrHuxtable

03/07-25

That June 2025 accounts submitted to today's meeting on Municipal D/Debits from DD4586 to DD4634 and Electronic Fund Transfers EFT7675 to EFT7718 (Inclusive of Department for Planning and Infrastructure / Creditor and Bank Fees Directly Debited and Credit Card Payments) totalling \$1,021,454.38 be passed for payment.

CARRIED 6/0

9.1.2 MONTHLY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY – JUNE 2025

Responsible Officer: Bill Price, CEO

Author: Jasmine Geier, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

File Reference: F1.3.3 Monthly Financial Statements

Disclosure of Interest: Nil

Attachments: Attachment 9.1.2 Monthly Statement of Financial Activity

Signature: Officer

Р

Purpose of the Report

The Monthly Statement of Financial Activity is a record of Council's activities and financial performance during the reporting period.



Background

This information is provided to Council on a monthly basis in accordance with provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996.



Comment

The Monthly Statement of Financial Activity for the period ending June 2025 is attached for Councillor information, and consists of:

- 1. Statement of Financial Activity
- 2. Statement of Financial Position
- 3. Note 1 Basis of Preparation
- 4. Note 2 Statement of Financial Activity Information
- 5. Note 3 Explanation of Material Variances
- 6. Supplementary information



Statutory Environment

General Financial Management of Council Council 2024/2025 Budget Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 34 1996 Local Government Act 1995 section 6.4



Policy Implications

Council is required annually to adopt a policy on what it considers to be material as far as variances that require to be reported for Council. Council policy is that the material variation be set at \$10,000 and 15%.



Strategic Implications

The Monthly Statement of Financial Activity is a record of Council's activities and financial performance during the reporting period.



Financial Implications

There is no direct financial implication in relation to this matter.



Voting Requirements

\times	Simple Majori	ty		Absolute Ma	jority
OFF	ICER RECOMMI	ENDATIONS			
		he Monthly Financial in \$10,000 or 15%.	Report for	the period endi	ng June 2025 and note any material
RES	OLUTION				
Mo	ved: Cr	Geier		Seconded:	CrSimmonds
04/		t Council adopt the M material variances gr	,		the period ending June 2025 and note .

CARRIED 6/0

9.1.3 GST RECONCILIATION REPORT – JUNE 2025

Responsible Officer:	Bill Price, CEO
Author:	Jasmine Geier, Deputy Chief Executive Officer
File Reference: Disclosure of Interest:	F1.4.4 Audit Report Nil
Attachments:	Attachment 9.1.3 GST Report
Signature:	Officer CEO
<u> </u>	A Notice
	V · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Purpose of the Report	
Executive Decision	Legislative Requirement
TI 00T III II I	
has an impact on Council's cash-flo	to Council as a means of indicating Council's current GST liability, which
mas an impact on council's cash-no	vv.
Background	
	Ledger to the General Ledger as reported as at June2025 provided to ans of keeping Council informed of its current GST liability.
Council off a monthly basis as a med	ans of keeping council informed of its current dor hability.
Comment	
The GST Reconciliation Report is at	tached for Councillor consideration.
Statutory Environment	
•	
Nil	
Policy Implications	
Folicy Implications	
Council does not have a policy in re	gard to Goods and Services Tax.
Strategic Implications	
Nil	
Financial Implications	
The GST reconciliation is presented	to Council as a means of indicating Council's current GST liability, which
has an impact on Council's cash-flo	
Voting Requirements	
Simple Majority	Absolute Majority
OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS	

That the GST Reconciliation totalling \$45,369.00 for the period ending June 2025 adopted.

Moved: Cr Faithfull Seconded: Cr Della Bosca

05/07-25 That the GST Reconciliation totalling \$45,369.00 for the period ending June 2025 adopted

CARRIED 6/0

9.1.4 ADOPTION OF THE 2025/2026 BUDGET

Responsible Officer: Bill Price, CEO
Author: Jasmine Geier, DCEO

File Reference: ES1.7.1

Disclosure of Interest: Nil

Attachments: Attachment 9.1.6 – 2025/2026 Budget

Signature: Officer CEC



Executive Decision

The purpose of this report is to consider and adopt the Municipal Fund Budget for the 2025/2026 financial year together with supporting schedules, including imposition of rates and minimum payments, adoption of fees and charges, establishment of new reserve funds, setting of elected members fees for the year and other consequential matters arising from the budget papers.

X

Legislative Requirement



Background

The draft 2025/2026 budget has been compiled based on the principles contained in the Strategic Community Plan and Plan for the Future. The 2025/2026 draft budget has been prepared in accordance with the presentations made to councillors at the budget workshop held on 2nd July 2025

The proposed differential general rates were approved by the Council on 15th May 2025 and advertised for public comment. No submissions were received by 16th June 2025 when the public comment period closed. Ministerial approval to impose differential rates/minimum payments was received 24 July 2025.



Comment

The budget has been prepared to include information required by the Local Government Act 1995, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 and Australian Accounting Standards. The main features of the draft budget include:

- The budget has been prepared with a 3.0% rate increase in line with the forward financial plans contained in the Plan for the Future. This increase applies to all differential general rate categories.
- Fees and charges for the various services that the Shire provides are listed in pages 74 to 77 in the budget. Some Fees & Charges have had moderate changes although plant hire rates have been increased in consideration of rising fuel costs.
- A capital works program totalling \$4.9m for investment in infrastructure, land and buildings, plant and equipment and furniture and equipment is planned. Expenditure on road infrastructure is the major component of this (\$2.1m) in line with Council's strategy to increase the investment in road and associated assets. An amount of \$2.1m is provided for land and buildings of which \$500k is for Singles Person Quarters & \$800k for the Playground Redevelopment.
- An estimated surplus of \$3.8m is anticipated to be brought forward from 30 June 2025. However, this is unaudited and may change. Any change will be addressed as part of a future budget review.
- Principal additional grant funding for the year is estimated from:
 - MRWA Funding \$678,000.
 - Roads to Recovery \$519,000.
 - The draft 2025/2026 budget continues to deliver on other strategies adopted by the Council and maintains a high level of service across all programs while ensuring an increased focus on road and associated infrastructure as well as on renewing all assets at sustainable levels.



Statutory Environment

LGA S6.2 requires that not later than 31 August in each financial year, or such extended time as the Minister allows, each local government is to prepare and adopt, (Absolute Majority required) in the form and manner prescribed, a budget for its municipal fund for the financial year ending on the next following 30 June.

Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 6 of the Local Government Act 1995 refer to the setting of budgets and raising of rates and charges. The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 details the form and content of the budget. The draft 2025/2026 budget as presented is considered to meet statutory requirements.

Section 67 of the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2007 enables a local government to impose an annual charge in respect of premises provided with a waste service by the local government.

Section 5.98 of the Local Government Act 1995 sets out fees etc payable to Council members.

Section 5.98A of the Local Government Act 1995 sets out fees etc payable to set out allowances payable to Deputy Presidents or Deputy Mayors.

Section 78(2) of the Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 requires the Tribunal, at intervals of not more than 12 months, to inquire into and determine –

- the amount of fees to be paid to Council members;
- the amount of expenses to be reimbursed to Council members;
- the amount of allowances to be paid to Council members.

Regulations 30-34AD of the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 set the limits, parameters and types of allowances that can be paid to elected members.



Policy Implications

There are no known policy implications arising from this report.



Strategic Implications

The draft 2025/2026 budget has been developed having regard for the Shire Plan for the Future and Corporate Business Plan adopted by council.



Financial Implications

Specific financial implications are as outlined in the body of this report and as itemised in the draft 2025/2026 budget attached for adoption.



Voting Requirements





Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

BUDGET FOR 2025 /2026

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.2 of the Local Government Act 1995 and Part 3 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopt the Budget as contained in Attachment 9.1.4 of this agenda and the minutes, for the Shire of Westonia for the 2025/2026 financial year which includes the following:

- Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature and Type.
- Statement of Cash Flows.
- Rate Setting Statement.
- Notes to and Forming Part of the Budget.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Faithfull Seconded: Cr Huxtable

06/07-25 BUDGET FOR 2025 /2026

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.2 of the Local Government Act 1995 and Part 3 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopt the Budget as contained in Attachment 9.1.4 of this agenda and the minutes, for the Shire of Westonia for the 2025/2026 financial year which includes the following:

- Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature and Type.
- Statement of Cash Flows.
- Rate Setting Statement.
- Notes to and Forming Part of the Budget.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 6/0

Simple Majority Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

GENERAL RATES, MINIMUM PAYMENTS, INSTALMENT PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS, DISCOUNTS AND INTEREST

 For the purpose of yielding the deficiency disclosed by the Municipal Fund Budget adopted at Recommendation 1 above, Council pursuant to Sections 6.32, 6.33, 6.34 and 6.34 of the Local Government Act 1995 impose the following differential general rates and minimum payments on Gross Rental and Unimproved Values.

GRV Residential/Commercial \$835,760 – same as last year.

GRV Mining - \$1,305,800 – same as last year.

UV Rural - \$83,916,500- increase of 14.08 % from last year; and

UV Mining - \$247,142 – decrease of 9.08% from last year.

Rating

GRV Residential - 8.225 cents in the \$.

GRV Comm/Industrial/Other- 8.225 cents in the \$.

GRV Mining - 24.239 cents in the \$.

UV Rural - 1.056 cents in the \$; and

UV Mining - 1.056 cents in the \$.

Minimum Rate UV Mining \$200.00

All Other \$370.00

- 2. Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 64(2) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council nominates the following due dates for the payment in full by instalments:
- Option 1 (Full Payment)
 - Full amount of rates and charges including arrears, to be paid on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of issue appearing on the rate notice whichever is the later.
- Option 2 (Two Instalments)

- First instalment to be made on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of Issue appearing on the rate notice whichever is later, including all arrears and half the current rates and service charges; and
- Second instalment to be made on or before 15 November 2025, or 2 months after the due date of the first instalment, whichever is later.
- Option 3 (Four Instalments)
 - First instalment to be made on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of issue appearing on the rate notice, whichever is later, including all arrears and a quarter of the current rates and service charges;
 - Second instalment to be made on or before 15 November 2025, or 2 months after the due date of the first instalment, whichever is later;
 - Third instalment to be made on or before 18th January 2026, or 2 months after the due date of the second instalment, whichever is later; and
 - Fourth instalment to be made on or before 21st March 2026

54, or 2 months after the due date of the third instalment, whichever is later.

- 4. Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 67 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an instalment administration charge where the owner has elected to pay rates (and service charges) through an instalment option of \$12 for each instalment after the initial instalment is paid.
- 5. Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 68 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an interest rate of 5.5% where the owner has elected to pay rates and service charges through an instalment option.
- 6. Pursuant to Section 6.51 (1) and subject to Section 6.51 (4) of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 70 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an interest rate of 11% for rates (and service charges) and costs of proceedings to recover such charges that remains unpaid after becoming due and payable.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Simmonds Seconded: Cr Geier

07/07-25 GENERAL RATES, MINIMUM PAYMENTS, INSTALMENT PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS, DISCOUNTS AND INTEREST

 For the purpose of yielding the deficiency disclosed by the Municipal Fund Budget adopted at Recommendation 1 above, Council pursuant to Sections 6.32, 6.33, 6.34 and 6.34 of the Local Government Act 1995 impose the following differential general rates and minimum payments on Gross Rental and Unimproved Values.

GRV Residential/Commercial \$835,760- same as last year.

UV Rural - \$83,916,500 – increase of 14.08 % from

\$1,305,800 – same as last year.

last year; and

GRV Mining -

UV Mining - \$247,142- decrease of 9.08% from last

year.

Rating

GRV Residential - 8.225 cents in the \$.

GRV Comm/Industrial/Other- 8.225 cents in the \$.

GRV Mining - 24.239 cents in the \$.

UV Rural - 1.056 cents in the \$; and

UV Mining - 1.056 cents in the \$.

\$200.00 **Minimum Rate UV Mining** All Other \$370.00

- Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 64(2) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council nominates the following due dates for the payment in full by instalments:
- **Option 1 (Full Payment)**
 - Full amount of rates and charges including arrears, to be paid on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of issue appearing on the rate notice whichever is the later.
- **Option 2 (Two Instalments)**
 - First instalment to be made on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of Issue appearing on the rate notice whichever is later, including all arrears and half the current rates and service charges; and
 - Second instalment to be made on or before 15 November 2025, or 2 months after the due date of the first instalment, whichever is later.
- **Option 3 (Four Instalments)**
 - First instalment to be made on or before 15 September 2025 or 35 days after the date of issue appearing on the rate notice, whichever is later, including all arrears and a quarter of the current rates and service charges;
 - Second instalment to be made on or before 15 November 2025, or 2 months after the due date of the first instalment, whichever is later;
 - Third instalment to be made on or before 18th January 2026, or 2 months after the due date of the second instalment, whichever is later; and
 - Fourth instalment to be made on or before 21st March 2026

54, or 2 months after the due date of the third instalment, whichever is later.

- Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 67 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an instalment administration charge where the owner has elected to pay rates (and service charges) through an instalment option of \$12 for each instalment after the initial instalment is paid.
- Pursuant to Section 6.45 of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 68 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an interest rate of 5.5% where the owner has elected to pay rates and service charges through an instalment option.
- Pursuant to Section 6.51 (1) and subject to Section 6.51 (4) of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulation 70 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Council adopts an interest rate of 11% for rates (and service charges) and costs of proceedings to recover such charges that remains unpaid after becoming due and payable.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 6/0

 CICED DECOMMENDATIONS		
Simple Majority	\boxtimes	Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

FEES AND CHARGES FOR 2025/2026

Pursuant to Section 6.16 of the Local Government Act 1995 and other relevant legislation, Council adopts the Fees and Charges included at pages 74 to 77 inclusive of the draft 2025/2026 budget included as Attachment 9.1.4 of this agenda and minutes.

nary Council I Iuly 2025	Meeting Minutes				Page 19
RESOLUT	ION				
Moved:	Cr Faithfull		Seconded:	Cr Huxtable	
08/07-25	FEES AND CHARGES FO	R 2025/2026			
	Council adopts the Fe	es and Char	ges included a	t Act 1995 and other relevelt pages 74 to 77 inclusive this agenda and minutes.	
				CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE	MAJORITY 6/0
Sim	ple Majority	\boxtimes	Absolute Ma	jority	
OFFICER I	RECOMMENDATIONS				
ELECTED N	1EMBERS' FEES AND ALLOWAN	CES FOR 202	5/2026		
(Financial Governme	nce with Section 5.98(1)(b) of Management) Regulations 199 nt Elected Council Members meeting attendance fees be se	96, Part 6.2 pursuant to	(1) and Part 6.3 Section 7B of	3 (1)(a) of the Determinat the Salaries and Allowanc	tion for Local
(Financial Governme	nce with Section 5.98(1) (b) o Management) Regulations 199 nt Elected Council Members pu e fees for the President be set a	96, Part 6.2 rsuant to Sec	(1) and Part 6. tion 7B of the Sa	3 (1)(a) of the Determinat alaries and Allowances Act 1	ion for Local
(Financial No	nce with Section 5.98(5) of t Management) Regulations 1996 embers pursuant to Section 7B of dent be set at \$6,000.00	and Part 7.2	2 (1) of the Dete	ermination for Local Govern	ment Elected
RESOLUT	ION				
Moved:	Cr Simmonds		Seconded:	Cr Faithfull	
09/07-25	ELECTED MEMBERS' FEE	S AND ALLO	WANCES FOR 2	025/2026	
	Government (Financial I Determination for Local	Management Governmen	t) Regulations 1 t Elected Counc	Government Act 1995, Regu 996, Part 6.2 (1) and Part 6 cil Members pursuant to Se ing attendance fees be set	6.3 (1)(a) of the ection 7B of the
				Government Act 1995, Regul	

Determination for Local Government Elected Council Members pursuant to Section 7B of the Salaries and Allowances Act 1975, meeting attendance fees for the President be set at \$365.45 per Council meeting.

In accordance with Section 5.98(5) of the Local Government Act 1995, Regulation 33 Local

	for Local Governme	for Local Government Elected Council Members pursuant to Section 7B of the Salaries and Allowances Act 1975, the annual allowance for the Shire President be set at \$6,000.00					
			CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 6/0				
	Simple Majority	\boxtimes	Absolute Majority				
OFF	ICER RECOMMENDATIONS						

MATERIAL VARIANCE REPORTING FOR 2025/2026

In accordance with regulation 34(5) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, the level to be used in statements of financial activity in 2025/2026 for reporting material variances shall be 15% or \$10,000, whichever is the greater.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Della Bosca Seconded: Cr Huxtable

10/07-25 MATERIAL VARIANCE REPORTING FOR 2025/2026

In accordance with regulation 34(5) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, the level to be used in statements of financial activity in 2025/2026 for reporting material variances shall be 15% or \$10,000, whichever is the greater.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 6/0

9.1.5 WALGA AGM AND CONVENTION 2025

	onsible Officer:	Bill Price, CEO	
Auth		Bill Price, CEO	
_	Reference: Dosure of Interest:	A2.8.5 Nil	
	chments:	WALGA Program	
Signa		Officer	CEO
			Aur.
	Purpose of the Report		
\boxtimes	Executive Decision		Legislative Requirement
-			ch Councillors will be attending the WALGA Convention o will be the voting delegates at the AGM.
	Background		
			nnually conducts a conference including the AGM. The ber at the Perth Convention Centre.
A prog	ram for the event is attached	for Councillor infor	mation.
	Comment		
	il will need to nominate if th modations.	ey are attending so	that arrangements can be made for registrations and
Based	on which Councillors will be a	ttending will detern	nine who will be Council's voting delegates at the AGM.
	Statutory Environment		
Nil			
	Policy Implications		
	Strategic Implications		
Netwo	rking and learning opportuni	ties provided by the	Convention
	Financial Implications		
Budge	t allowance for the attendanc	ce of conferences.	
	Voting Requirements		
\boxtimes	Simple Majority		Absolute Majority
0551	CED DECOMMENDATIONS		

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That Crs (insert names) attend the 2025 WALGA AGM and Convention being held at the Perth Convention Centre with Crs (insert names) being Council's voting delegates at the AGM.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Huxtable Seconded: Cr Gier

11/07-25 That Cr Crees, Cr Faithfull @ DCEO Jasmine Geier attend the 2025 WALGA AGM and Convention being held at the Perth Convention Centre with Crs Crees & Faithfull being

Council's voting delegates at the AGM.

CARRIED 6/0

9.2 COMMUNITY AND REGULATIONS

9.2.1 RURAL HEALTH FUNDING ALLIANCE SUPPORT

Responsible Officer:
Author:
Bill Price, CEO

Bill Price, CEO

File Reference:
F1.10.1

Disclosure of Interest:
Nil

Attachments:
Rural Health Funding Alliance Position Paper

Signature:
CEO



Purpose of the Report

X

Executive Decision

Legislative Requirement

The purpose of this report is for Council to consider supporting the Local Government Rural Health Funding Alliance position paper advocating for a recalibration of the Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grants recognising the additional burden of health Service provision being imposed on the Local Government Industry.



Background

A collaboration of Wheatbelt and Great Southern Councils are reaching out to bring attention to the pressing issue of rural healthcare funding in Western Australia. Currently, local governments are shouldering the financial burden of providing essential GP services—a model that is both unsustainable and inequitable.

The Local Government Rural Health Funding Alliance, comprising six councils from the Wheatbelt and Great Southern regions, has developed a position paper advocating for a recalibration of Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grants. This adjustment aims to ensure that rural communities have equitable access to healthcare services, regardless of their postcode.

Key Points from the Position Paper:

- Some families in regional WA travel up to 184km one way to see a GP.
- Local governments are spending over \$1.47 million annually from ratepayer funds to maintain basic medical services.
- Life expectancy in remote WA is up to 7 years lower than in metropolitan areas.
- The proposed funding adjustment would help attract and retain GPs, reduce reliance on ratepayer funds, and free up local budgets for essential services. We invite you to review the full position paper and consider endorsing this critical advocacy effort. Your support can make a significant difference in achieving a fairer, long-term solution for rural healthcare funding.



Comment

Our own Council invests heavily in the provision of Health Care Services through the Westonia Health Clinic providing a visiting GP, Nurse Practitioner, Physiotherapy, Chiropractor and Podiatrist, without any supporting government funding assistance.

Recognition of this investment would be beneficial should it be recognised and compensated in the General Purpose Commonwealth Grant.



Statutory Environment

July 2025					Page 24
Pol	licy Implications				
Nil					
Str	ategic Implications				
Recognition	of the impost of Health Service	ce Provision p	provided by Loca	al Government sector.	
Fin	ancial Implications				
Nil					
Vo	ting Requirements				
Simp.	ole Majority		Absolute Maj	ority	
OFFICER R	RECOMMENDATIONS				
recalibratio	cil support the Local Governm n of the Commonwealth Fina vision being imposed on the Lo	ncial Assistar	nce Grants recog		•
RESOLUTI	ON				
Moved:	Cr DellaBosca		Seconded:	Cr Geier	

That Council support the Local Government Rural Health Funding Alliance position paper advocating for a recalibration of the Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grants recognising

the additional burden of health Service provision being imposed on the Local Government

Industry.

12/07-25

CARRIED 6/0

Voting Requirements

Simple Majority

X

9.2.2	WHEATBELT NRM	- COLLECTION OF SEED AUTHORITY
Autho	onsible Officer: or: eference:	Bill Price, CEO Bill Price, CEO
	osure of Interest:	Nil Nil
Signa	hments: ture:	Officer CEO
	Purpose of the Report	
\boxtimes	Executive Decision	Legislative Requirement
	rpose of this report is to core boundaries.	onsider providing permission for Wheatbelt NRM to collect Native Flora within
	Background	
		e Noongar Boodjar Rangers is seeking Council's permission to collect native gement order to the Shire of Westonia.
Counci	l has granted this organiza	tion permission in the past under normal conditions.
	Comment	
Council	has granted permission b	efore to several entities with the following conditions.
•	abide by the conditions of Permission is for a twelve	ive seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 and will f this licence. e-month period, commencing June 2025. Issures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and
•	All care will be taken to a All care will be taken to a There be a requirement t	void the disturbance of fauna habitat. void any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and o donate to the Shire of Westonia, 10% of all seed from each species collected go towards rehabilitation projects in the shire.
	Statutory Environment	
Nil		
	Policy Implications	
There a	re no policies relating to t	nis matter.
	Strategic Implications	
N/A		
	Financial Implications	
N/A		

Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council authorise Wheatbelt NRM Noongar Boodjar Rangers to collect native seed from reserves under management order to the Shire of Westonia in accordance with the conditions set out below.

- All persons collecting native seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 and will abide by the conditions of this licence.
- Permission is for a twelve-month period, commencing June 2025.
- Appropriate hygiene measures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and weeds.
- All care will be taken to avoid the disturbance of fauna habitat.
- All care will be taken to avoid any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and
- There be a requirement to donate to the Shire of Westonia, 10% of all seed from each species collected within the shire. This will go towards rehabilitation projects in the shire

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr DellaBosca Seconded: Cr Simmonds

13/07-25 That Council authorise Wheatbelt NRM Noongar Boodjar Rangers to collect native seed from reserves under management order to the Shire of Westonia in accordance with the conditions set out below.

- All persons collecting native seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 and will abide by the conditions of this licence.
- Permission is for a twelve-month period, commencing June 2025.
- Appropriate hygiene measures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and weeds.
- All care will be taken to avoid the disturbance of fauna habitat.
- · All care will be taken to avoid any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and
- There be a requirement to donate to the Shire of Westonia, 10% of all seed from each species collected within the shire. This will go towards rehabilitation projects in the shire

CARRIED 6/0

9.2.3 BRENDA NEWBEY – COLLECTION OF SEED AUTHORITY

Responsible Officer:	Bill Price, CEO	
Author:	Bill Price, CEO	
File Reference:		
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil	
Attachments:	Nil	
Signature:	Officer	CEO

The purpose of this report is to consider providing permission for Brenda Newbey to collect Native Flora within the Town Common managed by the shire for a further three year period.

Legislative Requirement



Background

Executive Decision

Brenda Newbey, local resident, is seeking Council's permission to collect native seed from the Town Common under management order to the Shire of Westonia.

Her intentions are

'Since living part time in Westonia I have become interested in the native flora and have taken photos of many of the flowering plants. I have worked on Identifying them using various references and finally checking each ID in the State Herbarium in Kensington. There are likely to be at least 300 species. So far I have completed identifying about 110 species but I have not begun to compile an index as a resource.

My plan: I would like to make a publicly available (online) photo index of the flowering plants of the Westonia Common.

There is an elaborate blog of Esperance and surrounds flora species with photos and detailed text. Merredin has a comprehensive list of plants of the Merredin Shire with only a few photos. Many WA plant species have a small range so each shire has a flora which partly overlaps with its neighbours but is also distinctive. The index I have in mind could possibly be a blog with photos and text but on a smaller scale than the Esperance one.

It is not always possible to make an ID with photos alone and comparing dried specimens would be better. Sometimes it would be necessary to pick a plant specimen as it's too windy to photograph it successfully where it grows. I would not always be able to ID a plant and would need to consult a professional botanist for which a specimen would be necessary. I have a digital microscope which also takes photos. I'll be able to make more use of it for identifications if I am able to pick plant parts.

If specimens are duplicated for the Westonia collection, then this collection could be updated and expanded and perhaps made more accessible to interested residents and visitors.

I am not a qualified botanist but studied Botany for a year at UWA and was married to a field botanist from whom I learnt how to manage plant specimens. I had a licence to take flora for about 3 years about 25 years ago, at that time I was employed to collect and identify plants as part of projects on rare birds.'

The Council has granted this organization permission in the past under normal conditions.



Comment

Council has granted permission before to several entities with the following conditions.

All persons collecting native seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 and will
abide by the conditions of this licence.

24th July **2025** Page | 28

- Permission is for a twelve-month period, commencing June 2025.
- Appropriate hygiene measures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and weeds.
- All care will be taken to avoid the disturbance of fauna habitat.
- All care will be taken to avoid any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and
- That a database of the flowering plants of the Westonia Common be made available to the Council for public information.



N/A



Financial Implications

N/A



Voting Requirements

 \times

Simple Majority

Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council authorise Brenda Newbey to collect native seed from the Town Common under management order to the Shire of Westonia in accordance with the conditions set out below.

- All persons collecting native seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 and will
 abide by the conditions of this licence.
- Permission is for a three year period, commencing June 2025.
- Appropriate hygiene measures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and weeds.
- All care will be taken to avoid the disturbance of fauna habitat.
- All care will be taken to avoid any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and
- That a database of the flowering plants of the Westonia Common be made available to the Council for public information.

RESOLUTION

Moved:

Cr Faithfull

Seconded:

Cr Simmonds

14/07-25

That Council authorise Brenda Newbey to collect native seed from the Town Common under management order to the Shire of Westonia in accordance with the conditions set out below.

- All persons collecting native seed are licenced according to the Wildlife Conservation
 Act 1950 and will abide by the conditions of this licence.
- Permission is for a three year period, commencing June 2025.
- Appropriate hygiene measures will be followed at all times to prevent the spread of plant disease and weeds.
- All care will be taken to avoid the disturbance of fauna habitat.
- · All care will be taken to avoid any disturbance that may lead to soil degradation; and
- That a database of the flowering plants of the Westonia Common be made available to the Council for public information.

9.3 WORKS AND SERVICES

Nil

9.4 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH, PLANNING AND BUILDING SERVICES

Nil

10. ELECTED MEMBERS MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

11. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY A DECISION OF THE MEETING

Moved: Cr Simmonds Seconded: Cr DellaBosca 15/07-25 That Council introduces the following item of an urgent nature to the meeting for discussion CARRIED 6/0

11.1 REGIONAL ROAD GROUP - 5 YEAR PROGRAM & 26/27 PROJECT MCA'S

Responsible Officer:Bill Price, CEOAuthor:Bill Price, CEOFile Reference:T.1.1.3Disclosure of Interest:Nil

Attachments: Attachment – 5 Year Program & Leach Rd MCA

Signature: Officer CEO



Purpose of the Report

Executive Decision

Legislative Requirement

The purpose of this report is for Council to endorse the adjustment to the Regional Road Group 5-year program and the 26/27 project MCA for Leach Road.



Background

As part of the Regional Road Group Funding Arrangements, Council are required to review its 5-year road program and provide updated MCA's for the 26/27 financial year and beyond.

Council Roads currently eligible under the Regional Road Group program are.

- Warralakin Road
- Koorda Bullfinch Road (M040)
- Leach Road
- Rabbit Proof Fence Road (sealed section only)
- Westonia/Carrabin Road
- Stoneman Road
- Boodarockin Road

Annually Council is required to review its 5-year program to ensure that it is relevant with its current priorities and reflects the current and proposed status of the road projects.



Comment

The proposed MCA's application for funding in the 26/27 financial year is the following.

1. Leach Road – reconstruct 1.5km including 2 coat seal \$ 716,933.

Attached is the summary cover sheet for the project for Councillor information. Also attached is the adjusted 5
Year Road Program 26/27 to 31/32 financial years for Councillors' information.

Statutory Environment

Nil

Policy Implications

Nil

Financial Implications

\$ 492,294 Regional Road Group Funding for the 26/27 financial year.

Voting Requirements

Simple Majority

Absolute Majority

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council review and endorse the amended submission to the Regional Road Group: -

- 5 Year Road Program 26/27 to 31/32 financial years; and
- 26/27 MCA submission for Leach Road as presented.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Geier

Seconded:

Cr Simmonds

16/07-25

That Council review and endorse the amended submission to the Regional Road Group:-

- 5 Year Road Program 26/27 to 31/32 financial years; and
- 26/27 MCA submission for Leach Road as presented.

CARRIED 6/0

12 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next ordinary meeting of Council will be held on Thursday schedule 21st August 2025 commencing at 4.00pm.

13. MEETING CLOSURE

There being no further business the Shire President, Cr Mark Crees declared the meeting closed at 4.40pm